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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Maureen U. Ryan FAX: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director of Human
Services

May 12, 2017
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless
and Housing Services to enter into a sole source agreement with Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc. (Vendor Code 177195), 30 Exchange Street, Berlin,
NH 03570 to provide services to homeless individuals with serious mental illness
through the Project for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH), in an
amount not to exceed $159,658 effective July 1, 2017 or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2019. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following
account in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets with the ability to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without Governor
and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7926 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, PATH GRANT

Fiscal Class/Account Title Amount

Year

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services | $79,829

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services | $79,829
Total: | $159,658




His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This is a sole source agreement because Tri-County Community Action
Program is the only program in Coos, Carroll and Grafton County that is able to provide
these specialized services to individuals with serious mental illness or who have both
serious mental illness and substance use disorders and are homeless or at imminent
risk of being homeless. The mental health centers that serve smaller parts of this vast
geographic region will not contract for PATH services and did not apply in the last ten
(10) years that an RFP was offered. Tri-County Community Action Program is the only
agency that is willing to offer comprehensive homeless outreach services in this region.
An additional benefit of maintaining a sole source agreement with Tri-County
Community Action Program is the uniform service provision offered, with identical
training and supervision of PATH services throughout the agency, and the consistency
of resources and services offered across the region.

Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Administration for the PATH
Grant enable Tri-County Community Action Program to provide services to individuals
with serious mental iliness or who have both serious mental illness and substance use
disorders and are homeless or at imminent risk of being homeless. The primary
emphasis of PATH is the outreach and engagement into services and the housing of
eligible individuals. Services provided through this program will include: outreach,
screening and diagnostic treatment, community mental health services, and training and
case management. Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness case
management services include assistance in obtaining and coordinating services for
eligible homeless individuals, assistance to eligible individuals in obtaining income
support services, including housing assistance, food stamps, and supplemental security
income (SSI) benefits, and referrals for such other services as may be appropriate such
as referrals for primary health care, mental health treatment, and substance abuse
treatment. It is anticipated that Tri-County Community Action Program will serve
approximately 300 individuals.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this Request, shelter
and homeless prevention resources for homeless individuals with serious mental iliness
may not be available in their community which may increase the demand placed upon
local welfare authorities. People who are without housing and resources will resort to
seeking local shelter in places that are not fit for people to live in, or will attempt to travel
to shelters in other communities. This will increase the likelihood that homeless people
will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health,
education, and treatment.

Area served: Coos, Carroll and Grafton Counties

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will
not be requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted,

Approved by: MU/W

ffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families in providing
opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Project for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH)
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-6504
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.. 30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-752-7001 June 30,2019 $159,658
05-95-42-423010-7926
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq. 603-271-9246
Interim Director of Contracts and Procurement
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Robert G. Boschen, Jr.  Chief Executive Officer

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of’ NH , County of Coos

On5-12-17, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

1.13.2 Name zé)tf Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace SUaNbl?cE-%e:RECH e
My Commiesion Expires June 19, 2018
Suzanne C. French, Notary

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

~ ) ?( CM\V/\U\ Wailieen P’Y&‘n, Director

1.16 Apprt;;'al by the Nfl. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable}

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approvalpby the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: &// fMegen [} lbn(z A’HD/M S/26//7

1.18 Apﬂ'foval by the Governor and Execufive Co cil / /

By: On:

U
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: ﬂ%

Date: _5-12-17



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant; term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: /l {5 f }

Date: 5-12-17



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: ﬂ\ (’z c’
Date: 5-12-17



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

This contract is funded with Federal funds anticipated to be available based upon
continued appropriation. Funds are conditioned upon continued support of the
program by the state and federal governments. Department access to
supporting federal funding is dependent upon the selected Contractor meeting
the requirement in accordance with the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Catalog
of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #93.150)

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that
are applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition,
or rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of
funds.

The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
service they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

The Contractor shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System policy, including specific information that is
required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely manner
could result in delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are
received or data entries are confirmed by the State.

2. SERVICES

2.1 The Contractor shall provide services to individuals with serious mental illness or
who have both serious mental iliness and substance use disorders and are
Exhibit A — Scope of Services Contractor Initials:Q- LR
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit A

homeless or at imminent risk of being homeless which include but are not limited
to;

2.1.1  Outreach Services.

2.1.2  Screening and diagnostic treatment services.

2.1.3 Habilitation and rehabilitation services.

2.1.4 Mental Health Services.

2.1.5 Aicohol and drug treatment services.

2.1.6 Case management services that include;

2.1.6.1 Assistance in obtaining and coordinating services.

2.1.6.2 Assistance in obtaining income support services, including
housing assistance, food stamps, and supplemental
security income benefits.

2.1.6.3 Referrals for additional services as may be appropriate
including referrals to Primary Care.

2.1.7 Supportive and supervisory services in residential settings.
2.1.8 Housing services.

3. PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1 The Contractor shall submit quarterly and annual reports to the Department
which include;

3.1.1  Demographic information on contacts and enrolled clients, reporting age,
gender, race/ethnicity, veteran status, prior/current residence, substance
use disorder, length of time outdoors.

3.1.2 Detailed narrative budget yearly.
3.1.3 The number of current enrolled clients receiving services.
3.1.4 Services and referrals provided to outreached and enrolled clients.

3.2 The Contractor shall maintain records of clients and services provided. Accurate
and up to date data must be entered into HMIS on a daily basis.

3.3 Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely manner
could result in delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are
received or data entries are confirmed by the Department.

4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

4.1 The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or
trainings requested by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services (BHHS).

Exhibit A — Scope of Services Contractor Initials: _&M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit A

4.2

43
44

4.5

To the extent possible BHHS shall notify the contractor of the need to attend
such meetings five (5) working days in advance of each meeting

The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance,
activities and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may
not unreasonably interfere with contractor performance.

The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following
completion of the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until
an audit is completed and all questions arising there from are resolved,
whichever is later

Changes to the contract service that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

Exhibit A — Scope of Services Contractor Initials: _{ &€
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness Program.

2. This contract is funded by federal funds made available under the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

CFDA #: 93.150

Federal Agency: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration

Program Title: Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness Program
3. REPORTS

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

3.1.

3.2.

Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement 2 CFR part 200. Three (3) copies of the
audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of
said report to the State.

Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial
report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the
guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

4. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

41.

42

43.

Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2
CFR part 200as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines
established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2
CFR part 200.

Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the availability of State general funds, General
Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory completion of the
services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor
for Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness Program in an amount not
to exceed as specified above. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be
submitted on a monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as
designated by the State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The
Contractor shall provide additional financial information if requested by the State to
verify expenses.

Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Exhibit B Contractor Initials G2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit B

Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disallow
any items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be
in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any
amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture.
The funds authorized to be expended under this Agreement shall be used only for The
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness Program.

5. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

5.1. The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount
for the Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness Program as specified in
this Exhibit.

5.2. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the
contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and
written approval from the State.

5.3. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

6. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and
any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in
direct operations of the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR
part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment
shall be made according to EXHIBIT B, Section 3.2 of this Agreement.

Exhibit B Contractor Initials A (70'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials l ):Sﬁ

06127/14 Page 10f 5 Date 5-12-17



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrolliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement: .

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

(1Y N")
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’'s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shail mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

fu6
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 Inthe event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

5-12.17 \/]/\ 7[\3“6’\/\/\

Date Name: HRobert G. Boschen, Jr.
Title: Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.

5-12-17 1/i AAMA

Date Name: Robert G. Boschendf. -
Title: Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

”ou ” o

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property,

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I}(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

5-12-17 VW

Date Name: Robert G. Boschen, Jr.
Title: Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G y k ba
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

1y

Date Narie: Robert G. Boschen, Jr.
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit G /)
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Aral)\

Date Name: Robert ﬂBosch@n, Jr. e
Title: Chief Exgkutive Officer
Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials ’\L (7!5
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. *“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

”
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials n‘b V'Q
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“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
M. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii} an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

312014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials [2 LX)
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(3)

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit | Contractor Initials “ L@
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
The State , Name of the Contractor
C/ / 4 ‘4 /)j\
« 7/6’06(// D~ ! Mar
Signfture of AuWed Representative  Signatlire of Authorized Representative
/ v (/67( ALEECr / 89/ (724 Robert G. Boschen, Jr.
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
b ([ ()Zc) / Chief Executive Officer
Tifle of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
5 /7 7//'7 5-12-17
Date *~ / Date
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials 'LCII)
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

0PN AWN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

5-12-17 J\[\f"\/\\/\/

Date - Name: Robert G. Boschen, Jr.
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor [nitials ‘ Z= 0’!’:‘
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 073975708

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials ' L hft\ﬁ
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- State of Netw Hampshive

Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[ William M. Gardner. Sceretary of State of the State ot New Hampshire, do hereby

certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY
CAP) 1s a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed May 18, 1965, | further certify
that it 15 in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the retum(s) and

paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF. | hereto
set my hand and cause to be aftixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire.
this 7" day of April A.D. 2016

=2 -
e ek
Willtam M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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Business Information
Business Details
- TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

Business Name: ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI- Business ID: 63020
COUNTY CAP)

Domestic Nonprofit

. Business Status: Good Standing
Corporation

Business Type:

Busi Creati N i f )
usiness Creation 05/18/1965 ame in Stat? 0 Not Available
Date: Incorporation:
D fF tion i
ateo orrT\a _|or1 n 05/18/1965
Jurisdiction:
Principal Office 30 EXCHANGE ST, BERLIN, Mailing Address: 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH,
Address: NH, 03570, USA 03570, USA

Citizenship / State of

. Domestic/New Hampshire
Incorporation:

Last Nonprofit

Report Year:
Next R
ext Report 2020
Year:
Duration: Perpetual
Business Email: sandypatrick@tccap.org Phone #: 800-552-4617
iscal Y
Notification Email: NONE Fiscal Year End 5\ g
Date:
Principal Purpose
S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

1 OTHER / CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessInformation?businessID=52615  5/9/2017



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Gary Coulombe , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc..
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 8-23-16:
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Chief Executive Officer
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 12th day of May, 2017.
{Date Contract Signed)

4. Robert G. Boschen, Jr. is the duly elected_Chief Executive Officer
{Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency. & V

(Signature of the Elected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Coos

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 12th day of May, 2017,

By Gary Coulombe.

{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) /
WS A 14U C W

yry Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEALY

Commission Expires: 6-19-18

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE [MWDD/YYYY)
7/1/20186

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE {SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate hotder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsad. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statament on this certificate does nat confer rights to the

PRONUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance
1100 Elm Street

GONTACT garen Shaughnassy

PHONE " (603) 669-3218 [ A% oy (6931 645-4231

A#D%SS: kshaughnessyRcrossagency.com

Tri~County Community Action Program, Inc

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A :Philadelphia Ins Co )
INSURED INSURER B AmBuard Ins Co 42390

INSURER C :

30 Exchange Streast INSURERD ;

INSURER & :

Berlin NH 03570 INSURER F ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:16-17 All lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iNSH ADIL]SUBK T POLICY EXF
LTR TYPE OF iNSURANCE INSD LW FOLICY NUMBER (%W} (Sg}émvm LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
A J CLAIMS-MADE {vgwi OCCurR EREMSES (Ea ocougrance) $ 100,000
! PHPKL521023 7/1/2016 | 7/1/2017 | MEBEXP (Anyoreperson) | S 5,600
. FERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY | 'S 1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER. GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
CiPRO. iy 3,000,000
|| poucy secr (X jwac PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § ' ’
OTHER. s
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
__TouQBlLE LIABILITY {Ea accidant) H 1,000,000
A X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Perperson) | $
:LU&rggNED iﬁ#’%?”“” PEPK1521031 7/1/2016 | 7/1/2017 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | 3
| NON-OWNED [ PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Par accidant) d
Undennsured motorist ¥ 1,000,000
UMBRELLALIAB | X | aeour EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
A | x | EXCESSLIAB CLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3 2,000,000
oz | X | mevenmions 10,000 PEUBS46500 7/1/2016 | 7/1/2017 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION XRHC78327 X | FER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 83275 | SFarure | [ R
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEREXECUTIVE ) {3a.) NE E L. EACH ACCIDENT 5 500,800
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? FY INIA
B {{Mandstory In NH} i K. Matthewz., R. Uchban & T/1/2018 ) /1/2017 | gL EASEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 500,000
lées. descnbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below W. Batch axcludad E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT ! § $00,000
A | Professional Liability PEPK1521023 7/1/2016 | 7/1/2917 | Per Occumence $1,000,000
Aggregate $3,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additicnal Remarks Schedule, may be sttachad If more spacs is required)

Refar to policy for exclusicnary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire

Dept of Health & Human Services
123 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Chris Sharpe/JsC CZ e -:;-“

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 o2

® 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




MISSION STATEMENT

Tri-County CAP is a group of people and projects
dedicated to improving the lives and well-being
of New Hampshire's people and communities.

We provide opportunities and support
for people to learn and grow in self-sufficiency,
and to get involved in helping their neighbors
and improving the conditions in their communities.

Tri-County Community Action Programs...
Helping people, changing lives.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, Inc. Isa
private, non-profit 501(C) 3 corporation that is dedicated to
improving the lives and well being of New Hampshire’s people
and communities. Formed on May 18, 1965, we provide
opportunities and support for people to learn and grow in
self-sufficiency and get involved in helping their neighbors and
improving the conditions in their communities.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM,, Inc.

...Helping people, changing lives.
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To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (@ New Hampshire nonprofit organization). which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. and
Affiliate as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and its cash flows for the years then ended, and the
changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2016 in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate’s 2015
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial
statements in our report dated December 10, 2015. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 16, 2016, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action
Program, In¢.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Coone, MaDommetd v G hersti
Wpé @W

November 16, 2016
North Conway, New Hampshire



IRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
PROPERTY

Property, plant, and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash
Building refinance costs, net

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Demand note payable
Current portion of long term debt

Current portion of capital lease obligations

Accolnts payable

Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Interest rate swap at fair value
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3

2016 2015
$ 589,806 $ 488,950
1,248,318 1,014,274
229,419 247,754
88,880 116,150
40,992 30,678
2,197,415 1,897,806
13,388,060 13,468,105
(5,052,926) (4,588,525)
8,335,134 8,879,580
787,761 540,395
14,478 15,365
802,239 555,760
$ 11,334,788 $ 11,333,146
$ 863,867 $ 700,252
197,181 271,685
2,718 -
675,526 671,782
294,243 332,024
176,185 134,822
93,764 107,474
233,329 191,343
510,910 280,474
3,047,723 2,689,856
5,866,916 5,938,456
11,756 -
- 7,385
8,926,395 8,635,697
1,630,450 1,951,539
777,943 745,910
2,408,393 2,697,449
$ 11,334,788 $ 11,333,146




- NTY

M CTION

NC, AND A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant and contracts
Program funding
Utility programs
In-kind contributions
Contributions
Fundraising
Rental income
Interest income
(Loss) gain on disposal of property
Other revenus

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Services;
Agency Fund
Head Start
Guardianship
Transporiation
Volunteer
Workforce Development
Alcohol and Other Drugs
Cairoll County Dental
Carroll County Restorative Justice
Support Center
Homeless
Energy and Community Development
Elder
Housing Services

Total program services
Supporting Activities:

General and administrative
Fundraising

Total supporting activities
Total functional expenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME
Gain on interest rate swap

TOTAL CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Temporarily 2016 2015

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
$ 12,304,094 $ 300,307 S 12,604,401 $ 13,830,872
1,680,245 81,445 1,761,690 1,703,174
1,279,740 - 1,279,740 916,957
313,824 - 313,824 252,489
253,726 14,206 267,932 137,183
37,281 - 37,281 43,415
800,533 - 800,533 824,332
272 - 272 485
(175,932) - (175,932) 16,560
421 - 421 91,349
16,494,204 395,958 16,890,162 17,816,816
363,925 (363,925) - -
16,858,129 32,033 16,890,162 17,816,816
779,057 - 779,057 883,748
2,176,567 - 2,176,567 2,289,054
735,473 - 735,473 767,955
1,074,998 - 1,074,998 985,004
101,998 - 101,998 87,521
366,205 - 366,205 449,251
1,086,057 - 1,086,057 989,422
513,419 - 513,419 496,634
47,843 s - 47,843 95,727
276,766 - 276,766 249,099
514,521 - 514,521 442,493
6,988,501 - 6,988,501 7,433,283
1,125,851 - 1,125,851 1,088,328
161,727 - 161,727 172,157
15,948,983 - 15,948,983 16,429,676
1,236,429 - 1,236,429 1,154,866
1,191 - 1,191 4,498
1,237,620 - 1,237,620 1,159,364
17,186,603 - 17,186,603 17,589,040
(328,474) 32,033 (296,441) 227,776
7,385 - 7,385 42,327
(321,089) 32,033 (289,056) 270,103
1,951,639 745,910 2,697,449 2,427,346
$ 1,630,450 $ 777,943 $ 2,408,393 $ 2,697,449

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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IRLCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND AEFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $  (289,056) $ 270,103
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to .
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 472,186 483,149
Loss (gain) on disposal of property 175,932 (16,560)
Gailn on interest rate swap (7,385) (42,327)
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Restricted cash (247,366) 225,470
Accounts receivable (234,044) (180,597)
Pledges receivable 18,335 (247,754)
inventories 27,270 (50,111)
Prepaid expenses (10,314) (3,392)
Other assets - 818
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,744 16,947
Accrued compensated absences (37,781) 54,245
Accrued salaries 41,363 23,336
Accrued expenses (13,710} (8,588)
Refundable advances 41,988 (33,228)
Other liabilities 230,436 (125,119)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 171,596 366,392
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property 75,000 57,169
Purchases of property and equipment (116,320) (286,141)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (41,320) (228,982)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net advance on demand note payable 191,660 199,201
Proceeds from long-term debt - 13,089
Repayment of long-term debt (219,778) (239,753)
Repayment of capital lease obligations (1,302) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (29,420) {27,463)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 100,856 109,947
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 488,950 379,003
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 589,806 $ 488,950
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest : $ 184,941 $ 233577

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCL.OSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

~ Purchase of property and equipment financed by long-term debt $ - 45689 3 -
Purchase of property and equipment financed by capital lease 3 15,776 3 -
Line of credit converted to long term debt 3 28,045 3 -

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTE 1.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation
of community based housing for the Elderly.

Nature of activities
The Organization’s programs consist of the following:

Agency
Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management

support and oversight to our many individual programs. This includes
planning and budget development, bookkeeping and accounting, payroll
and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support, management
support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization’s real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of services, which include:
Early learning, Health and Family well-being. All children receive health
and development screenings, nutritious meals, oral health and mental
health support. Parents and families are supported in achieving their own
goals, such as housing stability, continued education, and financial
security.



Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships and engage
families around children's learning and development. Tri County
Community Action Head Start serves 241 children in Carroll, Coos &
Grafton counties in 9 locations with 12 center-based classrooms and 3
home based options.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medicai
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 21
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains a
minimum corps of 400 volunteers, ages 55 and older. These volunteers
share their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit
and public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 50,000 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
~ gain the skills required for better jobs.

The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy family (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD)
Services prowded through the AOD program include assisting the
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases:
Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to
appropriate treatment facilities.
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The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provide
chemically dependent individuals with the fundamental tools of recovery,
including educational classes, group and individual counseling, work and
recreational therapy, and attendance at in-house and community-based
alcoholics anonymous and narcotics anonymous meetings. The AOD
program also offers assistance with its impaired driver programs.

The Friendship House, in December of 2014, had approximately $130,000
worth of investments and improvements due to assistance from Public
Services of New Hampshire. The Organization is currently exploring the
construction of a new center for the Alcohol and Other Drugs program, to
enhance their services. There was $92,748 of pre-development capitalized
expense in the current year.

Carroll County Dental

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers high quality oral health
care to children with NH Medicaid coverage. The Organization also serves
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale
that offers income-based discounts for care. The Center accepts most
common dental insurances for those who have commercial dental
insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center, School
Smiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for
treatment to over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center.

Carroll County Restorative Justice

The Organization's restorative justice program provides comprehensive
alternatives to traditional court sentencing and dispute resolution within the
framework of Balanced and Restorative Justice. Two key components of
this process are personal accountability for one's actions (diversion) and
alternative conflict resolution (mediation). Services are provided by in-
house staff, volunteers, and partnered relations with other local service
providers. The division was discontinued in January 2016.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.
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The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Qutreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
site allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-Income Weatherization

The NH Weatherization Program helps low-income families, Elderly,
Disabled, Small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates Local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's Elder program provides senior meals in 15 community
dining sites, home-delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County Servicelink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with Medicare counseling, Medicaid assistance, long-term
care counseling services, and caregiver supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assistance
Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development, and a significant portion of their rental income is received
from the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The Organization includes a 12 unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) with respect to the rental charges and
operating methods.

The above Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under
guidelines established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Uniform Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program.
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Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the FASB in its
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958 Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit
Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the Organization is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes
of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
permanently restricted net assets.

The Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and
2015. The Organization had temporarily restricted net assets of $777,943 and
$745,910 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Restricted and unrestricted support

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

Unrestricted net assets include revenues and expenses and contributions
which are not subject to any donor imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net
assets can be board designated by the Board of Directors for special projects
and expenditures.

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions for which time
restrictions or donor-imposed restrictions have not yet been met. When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restriction (Note 12).

Permanently restricted net assets include gifts which require, by donor
restriction, that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income or a
portion thereof (excluding capital gains restricted by State statute) be made
available for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions. The
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and
2015.
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Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (i.e. the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The accounting standards for fair values
establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes
the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by
requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Observable
inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
Organization. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Organization's
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The hierarchy is classified into three levels based on the reliability of inputs as
follows:

Level 1. Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Organization has the ability to access. Since
valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available
in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a significant
degree of judgment.

Level 2. Valuation is determined from quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in markets
that are not active or by model-based techniques in which all significant inputs
are observable in the market.

Level 3. Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to
the overall fair value measurement. The degree of judgment exercised in
determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized as Level 3.

The availability of observable inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of
factors, including, the type of asset/liability, whether the asset/liability is established
in the marketplace, and other characteristics particular to the transaction. To the
extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or
unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment.
In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is
determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market
participant rather than an entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when market
assumptions are not readily available, assumptions are required to reflect those that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.
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As disclosed in Note 6, the bond payable, formerly baring monthly interest of 69%
of the sum of the one month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3.25%,
when the Organization’s debt service coverage ratio was 1.10; or 3.00% when the
Organization’s debt service coverage ratio was 1.20, included an interest rate swap
agreement. The Organization paid interest at a fixed 3.85%. The arrangement was
scheduled to expire on August 2040. The notional amount of the contract was
$3,145,412. Accordingly, the swap arrangement, which is a derivative financial
instrument, was classified as a cash flow hedge and was valued at the net present
value (NPV) of all estimated future cash flows. The Organization’s purpose in
entering into a swap arrangement was to hedge against the risk of interest rate
increases on the related variable rate debt and not to hold the instrument for trading
purposes. The swap arrangement was removed in February 2016 when the bond
agreement was renewed and the effective interest rate became 2.75% plus the
bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by 67%. The rate at the time of renewal was
3.10%.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the fair value of the interest rate swap was
$7,385 and the unrealized gain was $42,327. The fair value of the swap was
included on the balance sheet as a long term liability. The amount of the unrealized
gain for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $7,385 and there was no fair value of
the swap remaining after the bond was renewed.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroli County Dental
and participants in the alcohol and other drug treatment programs. Past due
receivables are written off at management's discretion using the direct write off
method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write method
approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts to be
written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable,
and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of
time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on outstanding
accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.
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Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.’s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $233,329 and $191,343 as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an Organization that is
not a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a
charitable contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files
information returns in the United States. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2012.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after it is filed.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).
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Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization’s annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Subsequent to year end, the discretionary contributions
were reinstated by the Organization. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization’s 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as restricted support. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of noncash
assets are recorded as unrestricted support.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as unrestricted support
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that
must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support.
Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the
donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The
Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets
at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.
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As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as
temporarily restricted in the amount of $229,419 and $247,754, respectively. This
amount was included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated Statement of
Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization’s financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program_salaries _and related expenses are allocated to the various
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of the each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.
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NOTE 2.

Other Occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 received
provisional approval and is effective until amended at a rate of 12.5%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Heaith and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2015 was 11.5%.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $27,769 and
$18,009, respectively.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization’s cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2016, the balances on
interest and non-interest bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up to
$250,000. At June 30, 2016, there was approximately $864,000 of deposits held in
excess of the FDIC limit. Management believes the Organization is not exposed to
any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and considers this a normal
business risk.

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 6. The required balance in the
account is $52,497 and is restricted from withdrawal except to make payments of
debt service or as approved by the US Department of Agriculture.
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NOTE 3.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit baiance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $15,372 and $11,135, respectively. The
Organization was not in compliance with this requirement however, in May 2013,
the client began making the required monthly deposits. The Organization has
made all of their scheduled deposits for the year ended June 30, 2016. These
amounts are included in restricted cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 6). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to the interest payments on the bond for a 12
month period. The balance as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $186,908 and
$186,721, respectively, and the Organization was in compliance with this
requirement. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the Statements of
Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $509,095 and $276,791, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2016 and 2015
was $503,888 and $271,547, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position. The Organization was assessed a
fee of $5,244 related to the unauthorized use of these funds in prior years. This
amount was still outstanding at June 30, 2016 and 2015; however, subsequent to
year end, the final assessed fee of $5,207 was paid by the Organization.

All cash related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is restricted for certain uses in
the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the Department of
Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at June 30, 2016
and 2015 was $81,593 and $70,992, respectively.

INVENTORY

in 2016 and 2015, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2016 and 2015, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $88,880 and $116,150, respectively. Inventory related to the Northern
Forest Heritage Park was considered to be in poor condition and not saleable and
was written off in April 2015. The Northern Forest Heritage Park was sold during
the year ended June 30, 2016.
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NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30, 2016 and 2015, employees of the Organization are
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 200 hours and 240 hours, respectively.
At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Organization had accrued a liability for future
annual leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of
$294,243 and $332,024, respectively. Subsequent to year end, the Organization
reduced the amount that employees were allowed to accrue to 180 hours as of
September 30, 2016 and will further reduce that amount to 160 hours effective
December 31, 2016.

PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2016:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value
Building $10,682,236 $ 3,325,948 $ 7,356,288
Equipment 2,237,057 1,726,978 510,079
Land 468,767 - 468,767

$13,388,060 $5,052926 $8335134
Property consists of the following at June 30, 2015:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value
Building $10,599,723 $ 3,018,512 $7,581,211
Equipment 2,176,915 1,570,013 606,902
Land 691,467 - 691,467

$13,468,105 $4588525 $ 8,879,580

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $471,299
and $482,262, respectively.

The Organization also had building refinancing costs of $17,730 during the year
ended June 30, 2014. Amortization expense and accumulated amortization for the
year ended June 30, 2016 was $887 and $3,252, respectively. Amortization
expense and accumulated amortization for the year ended June 30, 2015 was $887
and $2,365, respectively.
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NOTE 6. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 consisted of
the following:

201 _ 015
Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,496, including interest at 4.5% per
annum. Secured by the general business assets.
Final installment due June 2024. $ 120,899 $ 133,110

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. 163,026 174,527

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
instaliments of $292, including interest at 4.75% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due April 2030. 31,688 33,651

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $74, including interest at 4.75% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
instaliment due June 2029. 8,593 9,061

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $475, including interest at 4.25% per
annum. Secured by a first mortgage on a business
condo. Final installment due December 2015. - 2,820

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 6.75%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021, 386,831 - 444 989

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan. Final instaliment
due April 2021. See Note 8. 23,585 -

21



Note payable to a related party, interest accrues at
10% per annum, no monthly instaliments, full
principal amount plus interest is due August 2012,
informally extended. This note was paid off in April
2016.

Note payable to a non-profit organization (related
party), interest accrues at 5% per annum, with
monthly installments of $3,400. Full principal plus
interest due during the Organization's fiscal year end
2013, informally extended through September 2018.

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly instaliments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021.

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installiment due July 2021.

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final instaliment due November 2020.

Note payable with a bank requiring 18 monthly
installments of $4,518, including interest at 4.16%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment due
December 2018.

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485 (previously $15,260 prior to
the renewal in March 2016), including interest of
2.75% plus the bank's internal cost of funds
multiplied by 67% with an indicative rate as of March
2016 of 3.29%. Prior to the renewal there was a
swap agreement in place with a fixed rate of 3.85%,
adjusted by the difference between the fixed amount
and a rate of interest equal to 69% of the sum of the
1 month LIBOR rate plus 3.25% (when the
Organization's debt service coverage ratio was 1.10)
or 3% (when the Organization's debt service
coverage ratio was 1.20). Secured by first
commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.
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84,563 120,147
16,832 -
16,628 -

6,666 -
440,653 462,878
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NOTE 7.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principle amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or on August 1, 2047. 1,617,600 1,617,600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principle
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years. 250,000 250,000

6,064,097 6,210,141
Less current portion due within one year (197,181) (271,685)

$5.866916 $5.938.456

The scheduled maturities of long term debt as of June 30, 2016 were as follows;

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2017 % 197,181
2018 598,108
2019 155,080
2020 163,089
2021 443,142

Thereafter 4,517,497
$ 6,064,097

As described at Note 2, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first six notes payable listed above. In May 2013, the
Organization began making monthly deposits to the reserve account, but had not
yet accumulated the required balance. Failure to meet this requirement may be
construed by the Government to constitute default; however, the awarding agency
is aware of this issue and has not made a request for advanced payment. The
balance in this account as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $15,372 and $11,135,
respectively.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Company leased a phone system and a
copier under the terms of capital leases expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. The assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded
at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of
the assets. The assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.
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The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2016, consist of the following:

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly instaliments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is
secured by the phone system and will mature
in November 2020. $ 8,823

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by the copier and will mature in

March 2021. 5,651
14,474

Less current portion (2,718)
3 11,756

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2016 were as
follows:

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2017 $ 2,718
2018 2,981
2019 3,269
2020 3,584
2021 1,922

$ 14,474

NOTE 8. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with TD Bank which was
secured with real estate mortgages and assignments of leases and rents on various
properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement. Borrowings under the line
bear interest at 4.50% from December 17, 2015 through June 30, 2016 (previously
at 4.25% from July 1, 2014 through December 16, 2015), and totaled $600,000 and
$400,000 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The line is subject to renewal
each January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. On June 30, 2016 and
2015, the outstanding debt totaled $263,867 and $256,698, respectively, which
included accrued interest of $13,867 and $5,860, respectively.
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NOTE 9.

NOTE 10.

The Organization had available a $25,000 line of credit with Bank of New
Hampshire which was secured with all business assets of the Northern Forest
Heritage Park. Borrowings under the line bared interest at 4.25% per annum. The
Northern Forest Heritage Park was sold during the year ended June 30, 2016, at
which time the line of credit was paid off in full. The balance at June 30, 2015, was
$15,509.

The Organization had available a $45,000 unsecured line of credit with Northway
Bank. Borrowings under the line bared interest at 6.50% per annum, and totaled
$28,045 at June 30, 2015. The line of credit was converted to a term loan during
the year ended June 30, 2016, see Note 6.

LEASES

Operating Leases

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015, the annual rent expense for leased facilities was $158,499
and $180,867, respectively.

Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2016, are as follows:

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2017 $ 129,830
2018 63,388
2019 62,212
2020 34,974
2021 31,144

Thereafter 215,882

$ 537,430

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
Programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder Programs.
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NOTE 11.

The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,
approximately $12,200,000 (72%) and $12,900,000 (73%), respectively, of the
Organization’s total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
effect on the Organization’s programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2016 and 2015 approximately 66% and 69%, respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.’'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person’s real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.
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NOTE 12. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015

NH Charitable Foundation Grant, Mt. Jasper $ 32653 $ 32,653
Berlin Area Renewable Energy Initiative - 7,281
RSVP Program Funds 13,637 7,112
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 135,257 122,252
Service Link 19,135 -
Donations to Mahoosuc Trail 6,842 6,842
Carroll County Transit Program 682 -
Coos County Transit Program 586 -
Senior Meals ’ 53,381 -
Community Contact - 15,040
Donations to Maple Fund 1,825 1,825
EAP 68,143 -
FAP/EAP 12,167 38,117
Homeless Programs 43,277 47 677
Temporary Municipal Funding 229,419 247,754
Head Start 875 -
Julien Fund (AOD) - 775 575
Angelias Fund (AOD) 235 235
Loan Programs 37,427 36,291
Private Funding for Alcohol and Other Drug Program - 50,000
L. CHIP - Brown Co. House 22,314 19,443
Restricted Buildings 99,313 112,813

Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 777943 $§ 745,910

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization received funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.
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NOTE 14.

NOTE 15.

NOTE 16.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department’s satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in Note 6, the Organization has a loan payable to the wife of the
former Chief Executive Officer, which was paid off as of June 30, 2016. Also in
Note 6, the Organization has a loan payable to a non-profit organization which also
provides pass-through state and federal funding for some of the Organization’s
programs. See Note 6 for terms of the note payables. Total notes payable to
related parties for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $84,563 and
$132,725, respectively.

RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNT

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.’s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD’s prior written approval. During the year ended June 30, 2016,
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. was required to return to HUD the balance in the
residual receipts account in excess of $250 per unit. This resulted in a refund to
HUD of $1,184. This was recorded as a miscellaneous financial expense on the
Statements of Activities during the year ended June 30, 2016.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The beginning net assets for the year ended June 30, 2015, for Cornerstone
Housing North, Inc. have been restated to correct an error. In the previously issued
financial statements, salaries were allocated for the Chief Finance Officer and Chief
Executive Officer of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., without prior
written approval from HUD. HUD ultimately disallowed the expense. Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. paid these funds back to Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. in the current year. Correction of this error increased the net assets for
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. by $4,479 at June 30, 2015 and reduced the net
assets of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. by $4,479 at June 30, 2015;
therefore, these amounts netted to zero on the Statements of Financial Position and
Statements of Activities.
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NOTE 17.

'NOTE 18.

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year consolidated financial statements
have been reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation for the
current year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arcse
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through November
16, 2016, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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I-C RAM, INC,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2016, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated November 16, 20186.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Reone, MSSoanedl + Kol
W (PasoceaZeoro

November 16, 2016
North Conway, New Hampshire
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RI-C TY COMMUNIT T! INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program inc.’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2016. Tri-County Community Action Program inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit prbvides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the

types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for estabiishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

WW

North Conway, New Hampshire
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

1. The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:
U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, Heat Start — CFDA #93.600

U.S. Dept. of Housing & Urban Development, Community Development Block Grant —
CFDA #14.228

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, Community Services Block Grant — CFDA
#93.569

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT
None
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Robert Boschen, Jr., CMA, MBA

WORK EXPERIENCE
Tri-County Community Action Program Berlin, New Hampshire
Chief Executive Officer April 2016 —Present
0O Responsible for the strategic and day to day operations for a $20 million agency. 280+ employees
Chief Operating/Chief Financial Officer March 2015 —-April 2016

0 Responsible for assisting with the strategic and day to day operations and fully responsible for the financial
operations, information technology, human resources and facilities management.
Chief Financial Officer June 2014 — March 2015
0O Responsible for financial operations and facilities management..

Town of Falmouth Falmouth, Maine
Director of Finance August 2011 — May 2014
U Responsible for financial operations and reporting related to the $11 million budget for the Town — population 11,165
Responsible for the accounts payable for the combined Town/School budget of $42 million and investments of $30

million.
City of Waterville Waterville, Maine
Director of Finance/Treasurer October 2006 — August 2011

0 Responsible for financial operations and reporting related to the $16 million budget for the City — population 15,600 -
a service center that expands to roughly 40,000 during the work day. Responsible for the accounts payable and
payroll for the combined City/School budget of $36 million.

State of Maine, Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Augusta, Maine Nov 2003 - Oct 2006
Director of Finance for the Office of Medical Services (Medicaid) Aug 2005 — Oct 2006
Director of Finance & Reimbursement for Bureau of Medical Services (Medicaid) Nov 2003 — Jul 2005
O Responsible for financial operations, strategies and tactics for the over $2.3 billion budget for the MaineCare
(Medicaid) and related Medicare budget. This consisted of approximately 25% to 30% of the State of Maine’s
budget and insures over 20% of the State of Maine’s population.

M&H Logging and Construction Rangeley, Maine
Controller September 2001 — November 2003
(1 Responsible for the financials, human resources, and office operations (including information technology) for a
construction business and its related entities including a logging corporation and a land enterprise.

Franklin Community Health Network Farmington, Maine

Controller October 1997 — September 2001
0O Reported directly to CFO for this rural health network that had about $63 million in revenues.

Aetna, Inc. and Aetna Life and Casualty September 1991- July 1997

Aetna, Inc. - Aetna/US Healthcare - Midwest Region Chicago, HNlinois

Director Planning and Budgeting September 1996 - July 1997

U  Responsible for operating plans, membership reporting and budget for the Midwest region (one of six and the
largest). $52 million in operating expenses. $1.4 billion revenue. $375 million projected profit.
Aetna Life & Casualty Company - Pharmacy - Finance Department Middletown, Connecticut
Director/CFO - Finance February 1994 - September 1996
0O Complete responsibility for Finance Department. Reported to CEO. Cost center manager duties.
O  $825 million in revenue in 1996. Exceeded $1.1 billion by 1997. Profits of $4 million in 1993 expanded to $32
million for 1996. O Created 1996 to 1998 strategic plans.

Aetna Life & Casualty Company - Information Technology Hartford, Connecticut

Expense Management Consultant & Account Representative September 1991 - February 1994

United Technologies - Otis Elevator International/Hamilton Standard Connecticut
Senior Tax Specialist, Consolidations Accountant & G/L Systems Admin. February 1988 - September 1991
Kaiser Permanente, Accountant - Medical Group Hartford, Connecticut, Dec 1986 - Feb. 1988
KMG Main Hurdman, Tax Specialist Stamford, Connecticut, March 1986 - Dec 1986
PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS & EDUCATION

0 Member of Institute of Management Accountants 0 Passed the Certified Public Accountant Examination.

O The University of Connecticut, Storrs, Connecticut Master of Business Administration

O The University of Connecticut, Storrs, Connecticut Bachelor of Science in Business Administration - Finance



Jeanne L. Robillard

CORE STRENGTHS

Program development, management and administration ¢ Community collaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet funder standards
Grant writing and management ¢ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving ¢ Capacity building
Professional presentations ¢ Public speaking
Dedication ¢ Imagination ¢ Determination ¢ Fortitude

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Tri-County Community Aection Programs, Inec.
Chief Operating Officer
Berlin, NH Current Position
Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri=County Community Action Programs, Ine.

Division Director: TCCAP Prevention Services

Berlin, NH 20135- 2016

Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for funders
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri=County Community Aetion Programs, Ine.

Program/Division Director: Support Center at Burch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 2007- 20135

Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monttor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Direct Services/Volunteer Coordinator: Support Center at Bureh House

Littleton, New Hampshire 1997 to 2007

Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line



Direetor: Haverhill Area Juvenile Diversion Program JL Robillard * 2
Woodsville, New Hampshire 1999-2001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file

court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Counselor/Title I Teacher: Northern Family Institute-Jefferson Shelter

Jefferson, New Hampshire 1996-1999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Executive Administrative Assistant: North Country United Way

Littleton, New Hampshire 1993-1996

Bookkeeper with payroll, develop and facilitate community outreach presentations, fundraising,
develop and administer member program services, grant writing, preparation of financial reports for
Board of Directors, general administrative support to Executive Director.

Education

BS in Haman Services, Springfield College School of Human Serviees, Boston, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated with 4.0 GP.A

AS in Drug and Alcochol Rehabilitation Counseling (DARC Program)
Gateway Community College (formerly Southern Conneetient Community College)
New Haven, CT

Additional Skills. Professional Leadership and Civie Affiliations
Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-2010
Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-1998
Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Violence Council  7998-2003

Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
Nationally Certified Results Oriented Management Accountability ( ROMA) Implementer
Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Tratner in the State of New Hampshire

Board Member, Women’s Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2074, Individual Member 2008 -current
Bethlehem Planning Board 2070 - 2076

Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2077-20712

TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2077

Bethlehem Citizen’s Advisory Committee on Recycling  2007-2010

Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH  2000-2006

Small Bustness Owner : Aurora Energies 2013- current

Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 7997- current
Member, United States Figure Skating Association/International Skating Institute  aurrent since 1993
Coach, Plymouth State Skating Academy, Plymouth State College  current

® & 6 6 6 6 O O O 6 O O O O O 0 o

Awvid outdoor enthusiast and angler



RANDALL S. PILOTTE

SUMMARY

Accounting professional with over 26 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
EXPERIENCE

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM., INC., Berlin, NH 06/2013-Present

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016 — Present)

Accounting Manager (2015 — 2016)

e Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 4 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.

e Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.

e Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring’s by funders and auditors.

¢ Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.

e Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.

e Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.

e Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.

¢ Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accountant (2013-2014)

ST. PAUL’S UNITED METHODIST CHURCH, Manchester, NH 04/2011-04/2013

Auditor

Performed annual audit of the church finances for F/Y 2010 through 2012 which included various committees such as
Finance, Trustee’s, Senior’s and Women’s Group. Trustee’s committee bookkeeper for F/Y 2012. Treasurer of
Trustee’s committee for F/Y 2007 & 2008. During 2012 & 13 served on newly created “Investment Committee”,
established and monitored fund performance and was church’s point of contact to the investment firm.

KENT NUTRITION GROUP, INC. (f/k/a Blue Seal Feeds. Inc.), Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-2010)

e Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statements in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

e Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.




e Oversaw all aspects of a proprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

¢ Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.

e Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.

e Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.

¢ Oversaw month-end accruals.

e Assisted and responded to auditors requests on annual audit.

e Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller’s initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor’s invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)
Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM, INC., Concord, NH 05/1987-03/1989
Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)
SPECIAL PROJECTS
Blue Seal Feeds, Inc.  Participant of a 3 person team to improve logistics. The project resulted in:

¢ Gained approval for the construction of a 3M dollar warehouse expansion.
¢ Evaluated each product, by mill, products to manufacturer vs. buy internally.

VOLUNTEERISM

Heritage United Way (f/k/a-Londonderry/Derry United Way), Derry NH: 1996 — 2004
e Tri-annual Agency Review Team
e Appropriations Committee

Manchester Red Cross, Manchester NH: 1995 — 1999

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE, Concord, NH




DAWN FERRINGO

Experience

Prevention Services Division Director, Tri-County CAP. Berlin, NH July 2016 to present

Write, manage, and administer federal, state, and local grants and grant deliverables
Provide supervision of all programs directors under Division

Oversee and administer all fiscal and administrative matters related to programs, including
budget preparation, tracking, and management, grants preparation and management, reports
to funders and audit requirements

Maintain program documentation and ensure compliance with funding standards (mcludmg
audits, reports and compliance checks) and objectives as required by funders

Prepare monthly financial reports and Division reports for CEQO/COO and TCCAP Board
Ensure program integrity, viability, and compliance with all funding standards

Ensure program has adequate resources to sustain operations and programs

Represent program at community, business, and civic functions

Develop and maintain positive collaborative relationships with area health and human
service providers, and other civic and business organizations

Represent Division programs in federal, state and local initiatives

Organize, plan, and prepare agency development and fundraising projects

Shelter Manager, Tyler Blain House, Tri-County CAP, Lancaster, NH March 2016 to June 2016.

Responsible for the general welfare and safety of all Shelter Residents.

Direct intake and exit procedures.

Maintain appropriate client records.

Oversee the enforcement of house rules and standards of conduct.

Coordinate and assist with the provision of case management services for residents.

Supervise other House staff: hire, train, schedule and evaluate; oversee the submission of payroll forms.
Oversee the maintenance of the Shelter building and grounds with TCCAP Facilities; keep the interior
orderly, clean and safe, the exterior sound and presentable, house vehicle, appliances and office

‘equipment in good working order.

Maintain cash receipts for shelter guests rent, submit rent revenue to Accounts Receivable, and review
and submit bills for payment.

Be responsible for the receipt, storage and disbursement of donated goods.

Keep necessary records; prepare and submit reports on Shelter activities as required by funders.

Enter statistical data into State HMIS system; act as one of the coordinated entry points for the Northern
Region per State of NH BHHS, attend HMIS trainings as needed.

Operate under strict client confidentiality and code of conduct requirements.

Abide by the Homeless Programs Ethics Policy.

Public Relations Representative for the Tyler Blain House and related TCCAP programs to include
statewide Shelter Meetings, other meetings and opportunities for community outreach as necessary..
Assist Homeless Programs Manager and Prevention Division Director with fund raising and grant
writing.

Communicate regularly with Homeless Programs Manager and Prevention Division Director; inform
them of important issues promptly.



Director of Welfare, Town of Bethlehem, Bethlehem, NH July 2009 to March 2016.

Developed municipal welfare policy and maintained policy integrity, viability and compliance with NH
RSA 165, Aid to Assisted Persons.

Oversaw and administered all fiscal and administrative matters related to municipal welfare including
budget preparation, tracking and management.

Effectively reduced over all municipal welfare budgets by 60% over the course of three years through
program evaluation and established new policy and program facilitation practices.

Provided case management for clients who qualify for general assistance, which often includes resource
and referrals networking and client advocacy.

Employed a method of self-care with clients including self assessment, goal setting, strategies and desired
outcomes in the Seven Areas of Wellness,

Monitored legislation and new programs and makes recommendations regarding the administration of the
welfare function to the Board of Selectmen;

Made frequent collateral contact requiring considerable skill and tact in eliciting confidential and
pertinent information in order to determine eligibility for assistance.

Maintained meticulous case files, case notes, and other related records.

Established and maintains effective relationships with state and local social services organizations.

Maintained strict confidentiality practices.

Development and Special Events Manager, Adaptive Sports Partners of the North Country, Franconia, NH
October 2013 — May 2014.

Annual Fundraising and Resource Development: Worked with the Executive Director and
Development Committee to create, oversee and manage annual fundratsing plan for the
organization. Helped to establish new mission statement, strategic plan and case statement for
the organization. : '

Event Management: Managed key fundraising events throughout the year including, Wobble ‘n
Gobble Thanksgiving Day 5K, Pirates of the High Skis, Sunrise Ascent on Mount Washington,
Any Which Way You Can Triathlon Challenge, and multiple smaller events.

Outreach and Communication: Promoted Adaptive Sports Partners of the North Country’s
mission and business operation in the community and beyond.

Workplace Success Facilitator/Community Job Specialist, Tri-County CAP, Littleton, NH September 2007
—January 2011.

Conducted daily work simulated sessions through “Service Bureau” projects and Workplace
Success curriculum to participants enrolled with the NH Employment Program (NHEP).
Followed each participant’s NHEP Employability Plan in an effort to resolve employment barriers.
Coordinated Community Work Experience Program (CWEP) in Grafton, Coos, and Carroll Counties for
participants who completed Workplace Success.

Developed and maintained relationships with the volunteer sites and acted as a liaison for these sites, the
client, and the NHEP Employment Counselor Specialist.

Prepared Work Experience Program agreements with volunteer sites and clients, maintained weekly
attendance reports for NH Employment Counselors, as well as client evaluations.

Developed new volunteer sites through community relations and business networking through outreach
by means of marketing and presentation. Maintained monthly and weekly reports for the State of NH’s
Department of Family Assistance.



Education

MA in Human Services, Springfield College School of Professional and Continuing Studies, Boston, MA
December 2016 »

BA in Liberal Arts, Vermont College at Norwich University, January 2003
AS in Accounting and Business Management, NH Technical College, Berlin, NH May 1993

Professional and Community Affiliations

NH Local Welfare Administrators Association, 2009 — 2016

The Bethlehem Heritage Society, member February 2015 to present

The Support Center at the Burch House: Advisory Council Member June 2014 to 2016.

Bethlehem Elementary School Board: Member March 2014 to present and March 2008 to March 2011
Franconia Children’s Center Board of Directors, September, 1999 to June 2002

References Available Upon Request
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CORY D. JACKSON

EDUCATION

Granite State College Concord, NH
Associates of Science Degree in Behavioral Science
Bachelor of Science Degree in Bebavioral Science; Minor in Human Services

Berlin High School Betlin, NH
High School Diploma

SKILLS AND INTERESTS
Skills:

-Computer/intemet savvy; Microsoft Office (Excel, Word, PowerPoint, Etc.)

-Willing to adapt to new social/professional environments in order to fadlitate good
teamwork/cooperation

-Otganized and able to ptioritize tasks in order to make each work day efficient

-Able to learn new job skills in a quick and thorough manner.

-Works well with the diverse human population: homeless, mentally and developmentally
disabled, and those in the general community.

Interests:

-Computer and internet applications; family activities including scenic ddes,
home improvement projects; automotive repair, furniture building, guitar playing

WORK EXPERIENCE

2015 June to Current  Tr County Community Action Program
Homeless Outreach Intervention Specialist
. -Assists homeless population with: transportation to shelter, and referral to resources

-Assist at risk homeless population with rapid re-housing and homelessness prevention
applications; for financial assistance

-Frequent commuanication with shelters, landlords, property managers, Town Welfare
officers, Catholic Chanties, Salvation Amy and other agencies geared to provide support
for those in need.

-Daily use of Microsoft word programs (office, excel)-for data entry, as well as use of the
internet to research and access resource information.

-Data entry on internet based data base; Homeless Management Information Systems

(HMIS).

g



2014 September to June 2015 Northern Human Setvices Berlin, NH

Community Integrator-Day Support Services

-Supervise and support clients with community based activities which aides in developing
healthy lifestyles.

-Writes daily progress notes on each client in respect to their goals

2011 November-2014 May = Northem Human Services Berlin, NH

Service Coordinator .

-Schedule and facilitate quarterly meetings with the individual served and relevant staff/ fainily
members and guardians.

-Planning, implementation and coordination of services an individual receives, within and

outside of the agency.
-Advocate for the individual served; acting as liaison to the staff members within the agency,
as well as guardians, and any medical services outside the agency.

2008 March -2011 November Northern Human Services Berlin, NH
Community Integrator-Community Support Services

-Assist clients with A.D.L.s including cooking, cleaning

-Assist clients in a public setting with proper behavior and etiquette

-Supervise and support clients in an exercise setting to facilitate a healthier lifestyle
-Transport clients to and from stores and gym facilities

-Write monthly progress note based upon each clients level of progress in respect to their
goals

d



Rebecca Hewson

Certifications
New Hampshirc Board Certified Guardian ad Litem, 2007 and 2011
New Hampslwirc Board Certified f:amily Mediator, 2012

Education
Bachelor of Arts, Psgcho'ogg, 1998
Colbg~Saw3cr Co”cgc '

Master of Science, Psgchologg - Industrial Organizational, 2016 (cxpcctcc])
Southern New Hampshirc University

Expcricncc

Children’s Case Manager

Northern Human Services (2014-2016)

« Liaison for children and families in mental health, medical, educational, and court settings

Substitute Teacher (2012-2014)

» Substitute teacher and Paraprofcssional in graclcs k-6

« Follow lesson Plans Proviclcd and crcab'vc]y improvisc as needed
* Assist staff as needed

New HamPshirc Board Certified Family Mediator (2012- 2014)

. Facilitate conflict resolution in a creative, cxped iious, and Positivc manner

. Facllitate agreements between Partics in matters of divorce, separation, child
support, parenting P[ans, and workplace matters

. Draft Parenting Plans, Uniform Su pport Ordcrs, and Divorce Decrees

. Excellent written and oral communication skills

New Hampshirc Board Certified Guardian ad Litem (2007- 201%)
« Advocated for children in cases of abuse, ncglcct, divorcc, scparation, and Post~ divorce par-

cnting issues



« Conducted investigations, Prcparccl and drafted reports comPrisccl of information
acquircd from various Prochsiona] sources

. Established and maintained mea ningFu' working rclationships

. Collaborated with diverse Prochsionals

* Maintained meticulous records

Title ! Assistant(Januarg 2013 - June 2013)

Pine Tree t':"cmcntarg School, Center Conway, New HamPshirc

. Dcvelopcd dai'g lesson P]ans for gradcs k-6

. Worked with students in need of remedial support n ]itcracy and math
. Expcn'cncc with wilson Rcading Program and Fountas & Pinnell

Preschool Teacher (2004-2007)

The ConwaH Vx”agc Day School, Conway, New Hampshirc

. Dcvelopcc] lesson Plans

o Worked within the Paramctcrs of the budgct determined 135 the Board of Directors,

Lead Tcaéhcr, enrollment numbcrs, and state laws

« Collaborated with spccia‘ists for children with needs in areas of sPccch, occuPational

thcrapg, and behavior thcrapg

« Collaborated with social services rcgarding the welfare of several children

. Organizcd and Participatcd ina varicty of communitg fundraisers and cncouragecl staFF, fami-
[5, and student involvement

Manager, Markcting), Buyer, E)ooUcccPcr (1997-2000)

The wild Carrot boutiquc, North Conway, New Ha mPshirc

* Served as Manager of an inclcpcndcnt bouﬁquc

. Rcsponsi ble for hirfng staff, dctcrminfng schedules, and P!acing orders
. Attended trade shows

Interests
Downhill 5](iing, cross country skifng, snowshocing, trail running, hilcing, yoga, Pilatcs, Pl'wotogra-
P}.’H’ Painting, rcading, gardcning, and cool(ing.

References
References are Forthcoming.



Kyle James Cantin

Objective: To be employed in a position where my compassion and life experience can help solve social,
interpersonal and other problems faced by residents.

Summary of Qualifications:
e Confident - tackle all situations with a can- ® Holds a valid driver's license and a clean
do attitude. driving record
¢  Excellent organizational and interpersonal e Qutstanding communication and computer
skills skills
e Flexible, upbeat attitude and immense ¢  Caring natured and good organizer
leadership qualities o  Expert in addressing and solving negative
behaviors among residents
Employment:

June 2016-Present: Support Staff, Tyler Blain House, Lancaster, New Hampshire
e Responsible for enforcing bed bug protocol, intake of new residents to include a criminal background
check, managing emergencies, resident transport, written case notes, develop plans of action, kind and
compassionate case management, and practicing confidentiality
April 2014-June 2016: Crew Member, Dunkin Donuts, Colebrook, New Hampshire
¢ Duties include opening and closing the store, maintaining clean and organized workstation and ensuring a
clean guest area, entering orders into computer, dealing with cash and credit cards
January 2014- April 2014: Special Packaging, PJ Noyes Lancaster, New Hampshire
e  Package and label dental items by hand, examine and inspect containers, materials, and products to
ensure that packing specifications are met.
September 2013- October 2014: Crew Member, Burger King Littleton, New Hampshire
e Prepare quality products, maintain proper food safety practices, assisted with a variety of kitchen-related
tasks, greet all visitors with a smile
March 2012-August 2013: Bartender/Cook: 2 Kings Pub, Whitefield, New Hampshire
¢  Prepare food for service, bar-tending responsibilities include greeting customers, taking orders, mixing and
serving drinks, using cash register for payment, and keeping bar area clean and restocked.
December 2007- December 2011: Specialist, U.S Army, Fort Drumm, New York
' ¢  Deployments to Iraq and Afghanistan, drove mine-resistant ambush protected vehicle, tractor trailer and
fuel truck in support of Operation Enduring Freedom, also responsible for dismount to ensure safety of
medics. Honorable Discharge. ‘
March 2005- November 2007: Manager, Starbucks, Melrose, Massachusetts, Daytona Beach, Florida
¢ Duties include scheduling, hiring, and training new employees, conflict resolution, bank deposits, maintain
inventory, assuring cleanliness of store, assisting with the reorganization of poorly performing stores, and
reporting to the district manager.
Education:
White Mountain Community College, Littleton, New Hampshire
®  Anticipated Bachelors of Science in Human Services — May 2019
Concord High School, Concord, Vermont — June 2005
¢ High School Diploma
Certificates, training and recognition:
e Certified First Aid/CPR
¢ (risis Prevention
e Infectious Disease
¢  Certified Combat Life Saver
e  Combat Infantry Badge
o Afghanistan Campaign Medal with Star



CO M M U N l TY 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, New Hampshire 03570
Phone: 603-752-7001 Fax: 603-752-7607

) www.tccap.org  admin@tccap.org
I l o N CEO: Robert G. Boschen, Jr.

COO: Jeanne L. Robillard
FD/interim CFO: Randall S. Pilotte

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid Amount Paid
from this from this
Contract Contract
Robert G Boschen CEO $135,000 0 0
Jeanne Robillard COO $72,000 0 0
.| Randall Pilotte CFO $70,000 0 0
/| Dawn Ferringo Division Director $48,500 0 0
v| Andy Stone Program Manager $39,520 30% $11,856
v|, Cory Jackson Homeless Outreach Worker | $29,120 30% $8,736
Rebecca Hewson Homeless Outreach Worker | $27,040 30% $8.112
v | Kyle Cantin Homeless Outreach Worker | $27,040 30% $8.112

Serving Coos, Carroll & Grafton Counties




